A DAILY REPORT FROM THE THIRD SESSION OF THE CSD INTERGOVERNMENTAL PANEL ON FORESTS

Negotiations Bulletin

A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations

Vol. 13 No. 21

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD)

Tuesday, 17 September 199

HIGHLIGHTS FROM IPF-3
MONDAY, 16 SEPTEMBER 1996

At the sixth day of the third session of the Intergovernment
Panel on Forests, Working Groups | and 1l met in morning
sessions for the first round of discussion on draft texts for
negotiation. Working Group | considered programme element
(national forest and land use plans) and Working Group Il

considered programme element Il (international cooperation qr°

financial assistance and technology transfer). A Joint Working
Group session convened in the afternoon to discuss the
organization of work for the remainder of the IPF-3.

WORKING GROUP |

Working Group | took up draft text on programme element
I.1, national forest and land plans. The G-77/CHINA, supporte
by MALI, COLOMBIA and the REPUBLIC OF KOREA,
recommended that: NFPs be developed in the context of each
country’s socioeconomic, cultural and political situation;
decentralized planning be undertaken only when applicable;
inputs from local communities be recognized and respected; g
the effects of trade and market forces be considered in NFP
implementation. He proposed adding a new paragraph urging
donor countries to provide new and additional resources for tk
development and implementation of NFPs. With INDIA and
IUCN, he also proposed replacing a reference to “sustainable
forest management” (SFM) with “conservation, management
sustainable development of all types of forests.” The EU,
supported by AUSTRIA, said: a broad multi-sectoral approact
should be undertaken in devising NFPs; governments and
relevant agencies should develop consensus on the content g
NFPs; and environmental and conservation issues should be

MALI noted that NFPs are often inspired by national forest
policies. JAPAN noted that it was agreed recently that “SFM”
covers a broad range of conservation, use and development of

Lforests. He called for further development of the concept of
forest partnership agreements (FPA) as a mechanism for
international partnerships. He stressed the importance of
developing and testing pilot programs in order to promote
confidence in NFPs among different communities. INDIA,
upported by IUCN, emphasized: incorporation of a broad
spectrum of forest-dependent communities into NFPs and
proposals for action; recognition of the existing rights of these
communities; and FPAs as vehicles for implementing SFM.

UKRAINE asked for language emphasizing capacity building
for LDCs and economies in transition. CANADA proposed
language stressing linkages to the CBD’s work on biodiversity

cand forests, particularly CBD COP technical advice on
integrating biodiversity conservation into forest and land use

1 plans. FINLAND differentiated between formal and indicative
land use plans and called for monitoring of NFPs.

The CHAIR clarified that programme element V.1, on
andternational organization and multilateral institutions, judges
existing international institutions, while V.2, on legal
mechanisms, encompasses any new international structures.
1eESWITZERLAND called for an intersectoral approach to the
development of NFPs and stressed local traditional forest-based
knowledge in a section on technology transfer.
and COLOMBIA emphasized the rights of indigenous peoples
and local communities. The FAO asked for clarification of terms,
' noting that the UNCED terminology recalled here by the
G-77/China was adopted as a compromise between emphasizing
fthe objective of development of societies and emphasizing the
fulbans of obtaining such development. When forest objectives

integrated with wider economic and land-use plans. He prefenrc.?:)qEr seare referred to, the correct term is “management.”

a continuing forum for international consultations over the
establishment of a consultative body and encouraged
governments to form partnership arrangements.

The US emphasized that NFPs are only one approach to
achieving SFM. All planning should address the unique
circumstances of each country, including its history, land tenu
systems and land-use laws. He urged that references to NFP
replaced with references to SFM and that countries with NFPg
give priority to conservation and SFM in order to better attract
funding from national and international sources. NEW
ZEALAND suggested that all conclusions and proposals for
action be consolidated and sought to replace references in th
text to “the conservation and sustainable development of fore
with “sustainable forest management.”

AUSTRIA emphasized that the goals of NFPs include
conservation of biodiversity, soil, water and fragile forest
ecosystems. The REPUBLIC OF KOREA stressed participatory
approaches at local levels and ensured benefit sharing. The
CHAIR asked for all changes in writing and announced the

r‘“Eﬂompilation of a composite text, with all amendments

5 Righlighted and origin indicated in abbreviated form, for the next

P discussion of this programme element. If a negotiated text cannot
be agreed, the output of discussion on this element may be
elaborated in a Chair's summary. The EU proposed adding an
annex with definitions of terms used. The CHAIR agreed,
tt;,)ﬁ[,oviding that authoritative definitions of words agreed to within

Bthe UN context could be found and accepted by all.

Ministry for Development Cooperation and the Pew Charitable Trusts. Genel

Canadian Pulp and Paper Association. The authors can be contacted at thei

may be used in other publications with appropriate citation. Electronic versio

This issue of th&arth Negotiations Bulleti® <enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Chad Carpenter, LL.M. <chadc@iisd.org>, Deborah Davenport
<ddavenp@unix.cc.emory.edu>, Emily Gardner <egardner@hawaii.edu>, and Kira Schmidt <kiras@iisd.org>. The Managing Editor is Langston James “H
Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. The sustaining donors of Bhdletin are the International Institute for Sustainable Development <iisd@web.apc.org>, the Dutch

Administration (ODA) of the United Kingdom, the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of Denmark, the Swedish Ministry of Environment, the Swiss Federal Office of
Environment, the Ministry of the Environment of Iceland, the Ministry of Environment of Norway and the German Federal Ministry for the Environment, Nat
Conservation and Nuclear Safety. Specific funding for this volume is provided by the Norwegian Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Natural Resources Canada an

contacted at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y4, Canada; tel: +1-204-958-7700; fax: +1-204-958-7710. The opinions expr|
Earth Negotiations Bulletimre those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of 1ISD and other funders. ExcerptsHanth tNegotiations Bulletin

format) and can be found on the gopher at <gopher.igc.apc.org> and in hypertext througtkagesWWW-server at <http://www.iisd.ca/linkages/> on the Interr|

imo”
ral supportBailgten for 1996 is provided by the Overseas Development
the
ure
d the
r electronic mail addresses or at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206.( [ISD can
pssed in

ns Bbitledin are automatically sent to e-mail distribution lists (ASCII and PDF
et.




Tuesday, 17 September 1996

WORKING GROUP I

The Chair introduced a draft text for negotiation on
programme element Il, international cooperation on financial
assistance and technology transfer. The report specifies prop
for action on public finance, private sector investment,
technology transfer, coordination and information systems. Th
PHILIPPINES, on behalf of the G-77/CHINA, said the report
overemphasizes private sector financing and domestic fundin
She suggested adjusting the report to better reflect internation
cooperation aspects and said the proposals for action should
more “action-oriented.” The EU called for a glossary of
definitions and for complete references from the Forest

Vol. 13 No. 21 Page 2

and to identify the more controversial elements that will have to
be bracketed. The Chair emphasized, however, that the entire
document will go to IPF-4 in brackets, so all issues will remain
h&gien for discussion at IPF-4.

The Chair briefly summarized the work plan for IPF-4. The

ePanel will: continue and finalize negotiations on the text of its
report to the CSD, using the document resulting from IPF-3 as its

gbasis; integrate into the text additional proposals and inputs,
dhcluding results from intersessional activities, as well as
bproposals for action on programme elements V.1 (international
organizations and multilateral institutions) and V.2 (legal
mechanisms); and, if necessary, rationalize the structure of the

Principles. He said international cooperation must complementfinal report.

domestic finance efforts. The US proposed condensing the
document to three sections and using the term sustainable fo
management (SFM) throughout. She said conclusions on cod
of conduct are premature. JAPAN characterized the list of
actions as duplicative and overlapping.

MEXICO called for references acknowledging the importar
of national forest programmes (NFPs). With COLOMBIA, she
suggested more extensive references to the work of multilate
organizations. SWITZERLAND underscored the need for
priority setting in the report and for a balanced treatment of
multilateral cooperation and financial assistance. The GLOBA
FOREST POLICY PROJECT proposed amendments to the
report’s private sector investment provisions tider alia,
define a role for codes of conduct and invite developing
countries to encourage only those investments that promote
SFM. The RUSSIAN FEDERATION proposed using the FAO
as a depository for information on SFM technologies. CANAD
called for a holistic examination of the issue and said he will

The EU requested clarification on whether the current format
eshd existing programme elements would be forwarded to IPF-4.
€¥he Chair responded that these programme elements and long

lists of options for action would not likely be condensed by the
end of this session. He suggested that there might be two
cdocuments for IPF-4, one incorporating the recommendations
from IPF-3 and the other a tentative Chair’s draft that would
alllustrate how the former might be condensed. JAPAN suggested
that the text be accompanied by recommendations to the CSD
regarding specific actions to be taken for the Special Session of
Lthe General Assembly. He emphasized that unless there are
additional inputs to agreed text during IPF-4, “easy” portions of
the document should be finalized as much as possible at IPF-3.
The UK appealed to delegates to bear in mind the bigger picture
of IPF and what they want its overall message to be. The
outcome of IPF-3 should note that a great deal of activity on
Aforests has occurred since Rio, and it should highlight the areas
on which there has been significant progress, such as criteria and

propose references to the CBD and other conventions to ensurmdicators. There must be a continuation of work on forestry after

wider context.

CAMEROON said the report should emphasize that NFPs
the only framework under which forest planning should take
place. The section on public finance should consider the speg
conditions of countries undergoing structural adjustment.
AUSTRALIA, supported by UGANDA, noted that the docume
does not embody the concepts of shared responsibility and a
shared vision of SFM emphasized during last week’s discussi

UKRAINE asserted that technology transfer does not
guarantee the solution of problems in the forestry sector. She
called for inclusion of educational technologies and training in
forest-related sectors as priorities in technology transfer and
capacity building. BRAZIL noted that the proposals for action
technology transfer do not contain all of the recommendationg
highlighted during Plenary. UGANDA said that actions on
public finance are required by both donor and recipient countr
Proposals for action should not be limited to technology transt
but should also encourage technology development and exch

JOINT WORKING GROUP SESSION

Delegates convened in a Joint Working Group session dur
the afternoon to discuss the operational aspects of their work.
Co-Chair Holdgate opened the meeting by reminding delegat
that the objective of IPF-3 is to produce a document that will b
used in preparing the Panel’s final report to the CSD. He
circulated a note from the co-Chairs regarding the further wor
of the Panel for the remainder of IPF-3. The first round of
discussions, wherein delegations provide their views and
amendments on the given text, will continue through Wednes
morning in both Working Groups. The Secretariat will
incorporate all amendments into a second draft as soon as
possible. Delegates will negotiate the text paragraph by
paragraph during the second round of discussions Wednesdd
afternoon and Thursday in the two Working Groups. The aim

IPF-4 and some type of mechanism for periodic review.

are The INTERNATIONAL ALLIANCE OF INDIGENOUS

PEOPLES reported progress made since the announcement of an
iahtersessional meeting on traditional forest-related knowledge

(TFRK) to be sponsored by Denmark and Colombia. A steering
ntommittee has been formed and has determined the date and
venue for the meeting. The meeting will take place in Laticia,
p@nlombia from 9-13 December 1996. He called for inclusion of
the meeting’s findings in the IPF’s final report.

The Joint Working Group session adjourned at 4:00 pm and
delegations and regional groups broke into informal
consultations.

N THE CORRIDORS

Many delegates expressed confusion at the state of play of
id®F on Monday. One observer said that the delay in distribution
eof new texts exacerbated an already pressed schedule. An NGO
argggesentative questioned the IPF’s ability to sort out the

overlapping and cross-cutting items on its agenda by Friday.

Another observer optimistically noted that such seeming disarray
ng common to negotiations, and expressed gratitude for the

Chair’s organizational proposals on the remainder of the work
esor the session.

) THINGS TO LOOK FOR TODAY

Working Group I: Working Group | will meet at 10:00 am
in Room XIX and is expected to continue discussions on
dgyogramme element 1.3, traditional forest-related knowledge.
Working Group Il: ' Working Group Il will meet at 10:00 am
in Room XX and is expected to continue discussions on
programme element IV, trade and environment.
y

=

will be to reach preliminary agreement on less contentious iss

ues



